Flight Dynamics Support Services Procurement

NNG08234094R

Questions and Answers
from the Pre-Solicitation Conference and Tour

1. Based on current and past Code 595 expenditures, what is the likelihood of hitting the $95M ceiling at contract end?
Based on the Government’s analysis, we do not expect to reach the $95M maximum value. However, there is obviously some degree of uncertainty of the exact amount of work to be performed which is why the FDSS procurement issued an IDIQ solicitation.
2. Does the prime have to have cleared personnel? Will GSFC hold the clearances for teams/companies?
It is the responsibility of the Prime Contractor for providing cleared personnel as required by the RFP. Goddard will not hold clearances for teams/companies.

3. Can 591 ACS tasks be done under METS? How do you split them?

No, Attitude Control System (ACS) tasks cannot be done under METS.  All ground attitude work will be done on FDSS.

4. How much software maintenance and how much software modification/development is required? How many system administrators are required?

Hours for system administrators and software engineers are provided in the RFP.
5. The goal of FDSS appears to be continuity of current work. Are there any deficiencies in current work NASA wants to resolve? Is NASA looking for any specific improvements?

The needs of NASA are stated in the RFP and we look forward to innovative ideas in the proposals.

6. How much of work is operations and how much is for hardware, software development, training and documentation?
The draft RFP states that approximately 60% of the work is on-site operations and 40% is off-site analysis. The contract is an indefinite delivery indefinite quantity (IDIQ) due to uncertainties in work requirements and volume.

7. Why is the FDSS work being extracted from MOMS and METS?

Flight dynamics work is being pulled off MOMS and METS to consolidate all GSFC flight dynamics work under one contract.

8. Where does support of MDL/IMDC fall with respect to Task Orders?
There will be no FDSS task orders with Mission Design Lab Integrated Mission Design Center (MDL/IMDC) support. FDSS contractors will not be asked to support the MDL. 
9. What is the COTS inventory?

We will provide a list of COTS on the bidder’s library before the final RFP is released.

10. Mr. Beckman reported that FDB has developed and delivered ground systems. What ground systems has FDB/FDF developed and delivered?
As an example, FDAB has delivered ground systems for: 1) ADS for LRO (attitude determination systems); 2) FDS for SDO (flight dynamics systems); 3) FDS for LandSAT 7.

11. Approximately how often is SCIF access required for Conjuction Assessment?
Currently access is infrequent (~ two times per year). Potential future changes in support will require weekly access.
12. TDRS pointing angle monitoring for ELV. Which angles are monitored? User to TDRS? Or, TRDS to User? How do the TDRS SA or MA angles set to FDF?

Only TDRSS-to-User pointing angles are monitored for ELVs. The angles come in TDM (Tracking Data Message) format. Format is defined in the STDN-724 (available in bidder’s library). 

13. The RFP calls out COTS evaluation and integration. Are there evaluation or integration efforts planned for the in-house software efforts?
Evaluation and integration of in-house software are performed as part of our software development process.

14. Is NASA liaison support to JSpOC part of FDSS?
Yes, this support will be part of a Conjunction Assessment Task Order.
15. During FY 11-12, is it anticipated that human flight support will be necessary? This period is the transition from STS to Constellation.
Yes, ISS support falls in this time frame.

16. Does open source development include the verification of software developed by independent/external contributors?
A task order SOW could include such an effort.

17. What is the cost per usage hour and per instruction of the CAVE?
No business model has been developed for external usage of the CAVE.

18. Since most of the FDF work involves working with TDRS data and networks, and since Boeing is the prime providing these systems, would Boeing have an OCI to support this contract? If so, what areas would have the OCI?
There is no direct interface between FDF operations and Boeing as the spacecraft manufacturer. Therefore, there is no OCI.

19. Will open source projects migrate into the FDF during the period covered by this solicitation?

Task orders could be issued that migrate open source projects into the FDF during the 5-year contract period.
20. For software development and maintenance, is certification and accreditation required?

For software development and maintenance, there are no certifications or accreditations required.

21. There appear to be pieces of the analysis portion of the RFP that may play together – For example, the CAVE and some of the software under development like ODTK or GMAT. Will integration efforts for these pieces fall under the scope of the FDSS award?

Integration efforts can fall within task orders under FDSS.

22. For offsite analysis support, what hardware and software is GFE? What are the IT support requirements, e.g. hardware, software, communications?
For offsite support there is no GFE and there are no IT support requirements.

23. Is there a backup facility? If yes, is manning/handoff part of the RFP/RTOs?

There is no backup facility.

24. Does the FDF support contractor offsite workstations and data connectivity to Building 28?
No.
25. What is the source of gravitational models for Earth, Moon, and Planets?

We use the best available models from a variety of sources including GSFC and JPL. Configuration Management of these models should be proposed as part of the response to the RFP.
26. How are these models maintained and validated?
We do not validate externally-derived models.

27. Will the Government publish a list of attendees (to the Pre-Solicitation Conference)?
Yes.
28. a.i. Solutions provides the bulk of FDSS services on MOMS. Why should any other company make the investment in bidding this contract?
Most service contracts at GSFC have an incumbent contractor. However, this does not preclude the Government from conducting a fair and impartial evaluation of all proposals submitted. GSFC anticipates and welcomes competition on the FDSS procurement.
29. Where do bidders obtain current salary info for incumbent capture?
The Government is currently considering this request.
30. Will contracts consider 5 year IDIQ contract value the same as a single award?
The contract has been established as a 5 year IDIQ contract single award.  The contract value will be the sum of all tasks over the 5 years.
31. Does past performance have to be "Prime" or does subcontract qualify?
The Government will consider subcontractors' past performance data as stipulated in the RFP. The RFP requires the submittal of past performance information for significant subcontractors (defined as subcontracts expected to exceed $5M).
32. Please post the FDF descriptions read during the FDF facilities tour?
Yes, tour scripts will be posted.

33. What is the purpose of having the phase-in contract being separate from the actual FDSS contract?

The Government separates the phase-in so that the phase-in period is not counted toward the 5-year period of performance limitation.
34. Did Sue Hoge say that the FDF servers are security-scanned only every 3 months?
Yes, official security scanning is performed quarterly or every 3 months.

35. What is the evaluation weighting of 8(a)/SDB's included on the bid teams as subcontractors?

There is no evaluation weighting for SDB's proposed as subcontractors.

36. You mention that it was O.K. to contact incumbents; but with little disruption of work; does that mean no contact during work hours?

The Government is not forbidding contacting incumbents. However, we request that contractors use discretion as to not disrupt work being performed.

37. Is external business welcome? May, with NASA concurrence, the contractor develop external customers to help amortize overhead and reduce prices to current users?

Contractor's may not use the FDF for external business purposes.
38. Will a list of labor categories, descriptions and number per category be published in the library?
The Government has provided Position Descriptions in Enclosure A to the RFP and labor hours in the cost exhibits.
39. What is the total # of personnel required?

The Government has provided Position Descriptions in Enclosure A to the RFP and labor hours in the cost exhibits.
40. Is Level 3 of the WBS 1.1 or 1.1.1?

1.1.1

41. Would the Government consider a small business forming a joint venture to support this requirement?  If this is acceptable, would all the joint venture team members be required to meet the NAICS code limitations?

The Government has no objection to contractors forming joint ventures per se. However, vendors would have to consult with the SBA to determine eligibility of the joint venture under the NAICS Code applicable to this contract.

42. Who are the incumbent(s)? How do we get the incumbent contact information of the employees working on these functions relevant to FDSS?

The majority of the work is currently performed under the MOMS contract and the MOMS incumbent is Honeywell Technology Solutions, Inc.
A smaller portion of the work is currently performed under the METS contract and the METS incumbent is SGT, Inc.

Contractors will have to contact the MOMS and METS prime contractors to request incumbent contact information of employees.  
